
MINUTES 
MEETING OF THE RICHMOND BOARD OF SELECTBOARD 

TOWN OFFICE CONFERENCE ROOM 

6:00p.m.-SELECTMEN MEETING WEDNESDAY, MAY 28, 2014 

 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Selectmen present: Peter Warner, Clarence Cummins, Rose Beckwith, Tracy Tuttle and Gary Poulin. 
 
Others: Community and Business Director, Victoria Boundy; Chief, Scott MacMaster; Rex Dickinson, 
Jan Wanggaard, James Valley. Town Manager, Marian Anderson and Executive Assistant, Laurisa 
Loon. 
  

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.0 REQUEST TO APPROVE BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES OF MAY 14, 2014 
 

Selectman Beckwith made a motion to approve the minutes, Selectman Poulin seconded, motion 
passed (4-0); Selectman Tuttle abstained from vote, absent from the May 14th meeting. 

4.0 APPOINTMENTS, RESIGNATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, PRESENTATION 

 
6.0 ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
6.1 Isaac F. Umberhine Library –Update 

6.1.1 Updated budget figures.  
6.1.2 Paving-Received $1,000 in donations to date from community businesses.  
6.1.3 Public Works Department Hour: (171 Hrs.) 

  

The Town Manager stated that we have received $1,000 in donations for paving.  
We have received donations from Wyman and Simpson, Poulin Builders, Sewing 
by Mary, and a donation from Brian and Melissa Dore towards furniture for the 
children’s room. 

Paving was schedule for this week but with all the rain it delayed the project. 
The shelving is scheduled to be delivered June 12.  

   Public Works has dedicated 171 total hours towards the library project.    

Selectman Cummins asked what was the estimated public works cost to work at 
the library. The Town Manager responded that it depends on who is working 
there.   In 2010 town meeting voted to accept the library as a town building.  
Selectman Cummins is anticipating the question will come up and he 
understands town meeting took on the responsibility, if we had the old building 
we would have maintained it, and public works would have done that. The 



Town Manager added that when we had the issue at the fire station the public 
works crew did the ground work. Selectman Cummins stated its coming down to 
a month’s work for one person. The Town Manager would ask what other work 
they were able to complete in addition to the library. Selectman Cummins 
commented that a few activities have taken place at the library already.  

 
The Manager replied that this Wednesday was the children’s story hour. The 
reading series that’s going to start will be using the library.  We are trying to 
accommodate that request. Selectman Poulin stated that a lot of out of town 
people are excited about the new library in Richmond.  

Library Trustee, Jan Wanggaard stated that it was her impression June 12 was 
the installation date and delivery might be earlier.   

6.2 Revolving Loan Board-update 
  

The Town Manager stated that we are working on collecting outstanding loans and provided 
a handout.  

The Town Manager stated she is looking for input on Bill Kelley’s loan.  Selectman Cummins 
asked if it would be an agreement. Selectman Warner stated to make it a formal agreement 
and have it notarized. Selectman Warner would like to see if we can get $8,000 up front. 
The Manager added that she thought we might have an agreement similar to the land 
purchase agreement, as an example, the reason he is asking he has someone that wants to 
go into business with him and they won’t do it as long as there is a judgment against him. 
Selectman Cummins feels the board should go with the second option. The Manager asked 
if that is the consensus of the board. The board agreed with that option.  Selectman Warner 
would like to see $10,000 and a formal agreement.   

 

6.3 Code Enforcement Office-update, James Valley 
  

James Valley Code Enforcement Officer stated that he has an updated on the former 
Pleasant Pond Market property, the abandoned trailer on the Weeks Road and a possible 
junk yard on the Plummer Road. 

The inspection on Pleasant Pond appeared that nothing has changed it looked like the junk 
was moved outback.  They have placed up a no trespassing and private property sign. After 
the inspection I sent them a follow up letter outlining their agreement that they would clean 
up the property.  

The abandoned trailer had a permit for it to be a storage trailer; the holes have been 
boarded up and a door added.  She does want to eventually remove it. 

The junk yard, had multiple unregistered cars and junk everywhere.  The owner sent me the 
plan to pick it up, they are going to register the cars and have everything stored properly. 
Selectman Cummins added that it appears he is only registering two.  James Valley 



responded yes, there are two vehicles already registered and he is allowed to have three 
unregistered. It looks like he has a total of five cars. Selectman Cummins asked if he has 
more he is supposed to apply for a junk yard permit. James Valley responded correct. 
Selectman Cummins asked what your final course of action is.  James Valley responded that 
he has a three notice process then if the person was not compliant he would bring it to the 
board for further discussion and action.  

 

6.4 2014 CDBG Downtown Revitalization Grant Program, update 
 

The Town Manager stated we did not receive the funding that we applied for. No action 
needed to be taken. Skowhegan was the successful community. Selectman Cummins stated 
that some of the granite that was dedicated for that project we are now using for the 
library.  The Town Manager replied that is correct it had been sitting at public works.  
Selectman Warner asked how much granite there was. Victoria Boundy responded 
approximately 30 feet of curbing. 

7.0 ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS-NEW BUSINESS 
 

7.1 Selectboard approval for $20,000 local match for 2015 Waterfront Improvement Project.  
  

Victoria Boundy is asking for approval of up to $25,000 for next year’s budget for a 2015 
project that would happen in the spring. This is following up on 2008 waterfront 
improvement recommendations. We have been following up on those plans.  We received 8 
new docks in 2012 through the SHIP grant. We want to purchase larger docks to 
accommodate larger boats add shore land stabilization behind the pump-out.  We sent a 
letter of intent for the SHIP grant for a smaller project we were told we could leverage the 
SHIP funds to obtain money from the Boating Infrastructure Program.   The application is 
due June 30.  They want to see the local match commitment.  Selectman Warner asked if 
the larger docks would affect the size of the crane we need. The Manager responded that 
the crane we use is adequate. Selectman Tuttle asked where the local match comes from. 
Victoria Boundy responded the TIF. Selectman Cummins stated that if we take out $25,000 it 
balloons into a $90,000 project.  Selectman Warner asked what does that do to the TIF 
balance. The Town Manager stated that since we didn’t receive the CDBG grant we have the 
funds to do this. Victoria Boundy stated that our waterfront is known for being accessible, 
something to consider is once we have larger boats we can charge fees.  

Selectman Warner made a motion to approve a local match of up to $25,000 from the local 
TIF budget for 2015 waterfront improvement project, Selectman Beckwith seconded, 
motion passed (5-0).  

7.2 Nominations to MMA’s Legislative Policy Committee 
 

No action taken.  

7.3 RSU #2 2014-2015 Budget Information Session-update, Peter Warner 
  



Selectman Warner stated that he attended the Hall Dale Session. It’s explained well by the 
Superintendent our requirement is 6.9 to 8.1 mills. Richmond’s commitment was the 
highest because we had the highest property values. There are new proposed positions. 
Two new high school teachers and 2 middle school teachers. Our student to teacher ratio is 
10 to 1 these positions will lower the ratio. Selectman Cummins stated that this budget will 
increase Richmond’s mil rate by .9.  Does our town budget increase our mil rate.  The 
Manager replied no.  When people talk about taxes being raised it’s the school budget that 
has increased taxes for the past two years.   

Selectman Tuttle feels the standard based learning hurt the school. Selectman Beckwith 
added that it is strange the kids are getting 2 and 3’s and the Governor hands the towns out 
letter grades. Selectman Tuttle stated there are a lot of kids not graduating. They should 
have allowed the high school to finish out what they were originally taught. Selectman 
Beckwith added that when it was presented they told us it would take 8 years to implement 
two years later it was online and we had to do it.  

Selectman Warner asked if we want to consider where we want to make concessions if we 
are forced to make cuts. Selectman Cummins stated that we worked collectively hard on our 
budget, I don’t think at this point we want to suggest where we could cut a budget that we 
worked so hard to keep fiscally responsible. I would like to think as a board and budget 
committee we would stand behind the budget we approved. If we were to make a 
suggestion we are putting a target on the item.  

Selectman Tuttle stated that there has to be someone who can be proactive.  It feels like we 
have to accept whatever is put before us, we don’t get notified or when we do it’s in the 
11th hour, people feel helpless. Selectman Cummins would like to emphasize the message 
it’s the school budget raising taxes.  

Russ Hughes is working on being a write in for the school board.  

7.4 2014 Town Audit Proposal  
  

PFBF, CPAs out of Oakland has submitted a proposal to the town for auditing services.  Fred 
Brewer the auditor for William H. Brewer has gone to work for this company. We have been 
paying $12,500. This proposal is for $10,500 it would increase to $10,750 the second year 
and $11,000 the third year. Selectman Cummins is concerned that the references listed does 
not include any municipalities is there experience sufficient for our needs. The Manager 
responded that they have three water districts and the man that has done the Town of 
Richmond’s audits is with this company. The reason he made the change is this company is 
branching out. We can stay with our current firm. Selectman Tuttle asked how long the 
contract is. The Manager responded it is a three year contract. They finished their third year 
last year. Selectman Cummins asked if we have confidence with the people that are with our 
current company since Fred Brewer has left. The Town Manager stated we can go out for 
RFP.   Selectman Poulin feels Mr. Brewer is familiar with Richmond.    The Manager replied 
you can accept this proposal as written and suggests going out for RFP for 2015. Selectman 
Tuttle stated that she likes the familiarity and if it’s saving money she is not opposed. 
Selectman Warner also feels we should go with this firm and accept the proposal as written.  
The consensus of the board was to go with PFBP, CPA’s.   



8.0 ASSESSOR ITEMS- BUSINESS 
 

9.0 MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS-ORAL & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
9.1 Public 

 
9.2 Town Manager-RYRA-Sam’s Club 

 

The Town Manager stated that RYRA is asking for two more Sam’s Club cards. She received 
an email from the Vice President asking me to dedicate staff members to pick up their order 
on a Friday. Then I sent an email that I had a meeting in Augusta in the morning and would 
pick it up then I got a list saying I could go shopping for them. They had done a pick and pull 
for pick up on Friday. Selectman Cummins asked what does the card cost. The Manager 
replied $45. The only reason I am bringing this to you is that the Sam’s Club issue was a big 
issue with the Budget Committee. Selectman Beckwith added that they want the Vice 
President and snack shack manager to be able to pick up the orders.  

Also received a letter from the State they are doing road side spraying starting June 2. The 
Manager added that she will put up general information on our website and Facebook.  

9.3 Selectmen 

Selectman Poulin asked where we left off with the Pittston issue. The Manager stated that 
we voted to explore it. Bill Butler sent us back some comment’s, we need Hatch Hill 
numbers and we need to check our volume to see if we have the ability. Also Pittston went 
to Wiscasset before us. They want to pay the basic fee; they don’t want to pay extra costs. 
Wiscasset required an upfront amount of money. This issue will be brought back to the 
board. The public works director feels that we may have to hire another staff person.  If 
that’s the case they should pay for that. Selectman Poulin stated that even for Richmond 
residents I would like to see the stickers have a spot to write the license plate number that 
the sticker is going to be attached to. Selectman Cummins asked how we are dealing with 
complaints. The Manager replied it’s still a work in progress. The public works director was 
out there working and found that a Dresden resident had Richmond sticker.  The Dresden 
resident has a Richmond PO Box which caused the mix up in the front office.   

Chief Scott MacMaster stated that  we routinely get complaints on Saturdays from residents 
on Lincoln Street, traffic will increase on that street, we might need extra patrol if Pittston 
came on board, I see our illegal dumping complaints going up, also the resident coming right 
before closing time and the gates are closed are they going to be responsible. Selectman 
Warner asked if it will be posted for speed. Chief responded yes its 25mph and increases. 
The Manager suggested putting out the speed trailer.  

Selectman Poulin asked if we got ahold of Bruce Carver in regards to the siding. The 
Manager responded yes he said there is some extra siding at the library.   

Selectman Tuttle added that this is her last meeting.  She has several community service 
ideas in mind so we will be hearing from her soon.  Selectman Poulin thanked Tracy for her 
services and the help she has given him.  Selectman Beckwith added her appreciation for 
Tuttle’s service and outspoken ideas.  



10.0   WARRANT 
10.1 Request for action regarding all disbursement warrants 

 
Selectman Warner made a motion to sign the warrant, Selectman Poulin seconded, 
motion passed (5-0). 

 
11.0   EXECUTIVE SESSION 1 M.R.S.A. 405(6) (A)-Personnel Issues-Department Head Evaluations 

 
Selectman Warner made a motion to move into Executive Session at 7:38p.m. Selectman 
Beckwith seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

 
No action taken. 

 
Selectman Warner made a motion to come out of Executive Session.  Selectman Beckwith 
seconded, motion passed (5-0).  

 
12.0   ADJOURNMENT  

 

Selectman Beckwith made a motion to adjourn, Selectman Warner seconded, motion passed (5-
0). 


